
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Pete Martens, Committee 
Manager Planning & Regulatory on 01432 260248 or e-mail 
pmartens@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Regulatory Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 5 July 2011 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Pete Martens, Committee Manager Planning & Regulatory 
Tel: 01432 260248 
Email: pmartens@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide 
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will then have to 
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors 
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they 
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they do have a personal 
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a Councillor 
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who has declared a 
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in 
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In such 
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on 
the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must 
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 
 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Regulatory 
Committee 
  
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor JW Hope MBE 
   
  

Councillor CM Bartrum  
Councillor PL Bettington  
Councillor BA Durkin  
Councillor AJ Hempton-Smith  
Councillor RC Hunt  
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  
Councillor PJ McCaull  
Councillor C Nicholls  
Councillor GA Powell  
  

 
  

 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  5 JULY 2011 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

   
2. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN     
   
 To note that at the meeting of Council on 27 May 2011, Councillor JW Hope 

MBE was elected as Chairman of the Regulatory Committee. 
 

 

   
3. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN     
   
 To elect a Vice-Chairman for the ensuing year. 

 
 

   
4. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

   
5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

 

   
6. MINUTES   1 - 4  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 April, 2011. 

 
 

   
7. MINOR AMENDMENTS TO THE LICENSING POLICY - LICENSING ACT 

2003   
5 - 8  

   
 To consider proposed minor amendments to the Herefordshire Council 

licensing policy in respect of carrying out its functions under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 
 

 

   
Conditions 9 - 28  
   
Licensing Page 22 - 23 Amendment 29 - 30  
   
Licensing  Page 30  - Amendment 31 - 32  
   
8. UPDATE ON ACTIVITY OF COMMUNITY PROTECTION TEAM   33 - 34  
   
 To receive an update on the main activities of the Community Protection 

Team for the period April to May 2011. 
 

 

   
9. REGULATORY ACTIVITIES OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & TRADING 

STANDARDS SINCE 1ST APRIL,  2011   
35 - 40  

   
 To note the main regulatory activities of Environmental Health & Trading 

Standards service.  
 

 

   
Main Activities of Environmental Health & Trading Standards from 1st April, 41 - 44  



 

 

3011 
   
10. REGULATORY ACTIVITY OF PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING   45 - 48  
   
 To note the main regulatory activities of Private Sector Housing for the year 

2010/11. 
 

 

   
11. PROGRESS OF REGULATORY MATTERS   49 - 52  
   
 To note the main activities of those involved in regulatory matters since the 

introduction of changes to the Constitution on 1st February, 2011. 
 

 

   



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at the 
southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken to 
ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the building 
following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 



AGENDA ITEM 6

1



2



3



4



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer 01432 383542  

  

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 5 JULY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: MINOR AMENDMENTS TO THE LICENSING POLICY 
– LICENSING ACT 2003  

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HEALTH & WELLBEING SERVICE 

PEOPLE’S SERVICE DIRECTORATE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 
Countywide 

Purpose 
To make minor amendments to the Herefordshire Council licensing policy in respect of carrying out its 
functions under the Licensing Act 2003. (Attached as Appendix 1). 

 
Key Decision  
This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

 THAT The Committee adopt the amendments as presented subject to any ratification  
  required by Council. 

 

Key Points Summary 

• The amendments are  the subject of public consultation 

Options 

1 a.  Adopt the amendments as presented (subject to no adverse comment on the consultation) 

b. Refuse to adopt the amendments as presented 

c. Adopt the amendments (subject to no adverse comment on the consultation) but with 
amendments 

d. Reach some other decision 
 
Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The minor amendments will ensure that the Licensing Authority fulfils it requirements under the 

licensing act by complying with a number of recent stated cases in respect of conditions. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

5



Introduction and Background 

 3 Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions 

 under the Act with a view to promoting the following licensing objectives:- 

 a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

 b) public safety; 

 c) the prevention of public nuisance 

 d) the protection of children from harm. 

4  Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the local authority to determine every three years 

 its policy with respect to the exercise of its licensing functions and publish a statement of that 

 policy before the beginning of the period. The current statement of licensing policy had effect 

 from 1st February 2011. 

5 Section 5(4) of the Act states that: 

 During each three year period, a licensing authority must keep its policy under review and 

make such revisions to it, at such times, as it considers appropriate. 

6 Before determining the policy the licensing authority must consult – 

 a) The chief officer of police for the licensing authority’s area. 

 b) The fire authority for that area, 

 c) Such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of 

premises licences issued by that authority. 

 d) Such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of club 

premises certificates issued by that authority, 

e) Such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of holders of 

personal licences issued by that authority, and 

f)  Such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of businesses 

and residents in its area. 

 

7 There have been a number of recent stated cases which have looked at the issue of 

conditions being attached to licences. The Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under Section 

182 of the Act for licensing authorities on the discharge of their functions under the Act has 

now been amended to reflective these cases. This guidance states that conditions should be: - 

• necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives  

6



• enforceable  

• unequivocal/unambiguous  

• proportionate and  

• do not duplicate other statutory provisions  

 

8 As a result of this a ‘Pool of Model Conditions’ has now been drawn up to assist applicants 

when making application (although this will not form part of the policy, as it is likely to be 

regular updated). 

 

9 Whilst the consultation is not complete, due to the nature of the proposed changes it is felt that 

no adverse comment will be received. 

 

10 The committee are therefore asked to consider the matter with a view to agreeing it, subject to 

their being no adverse comments from the consultation, bearing in mind that the matter could 

not come before the committee again until 4th October 2011. 

 

Consultation. 

11 The amendments are the subject of consultation at the moment.  

12 The chief officer of police for West Mercia has been was consulted and fully supports the 
amendments.  

13 All other consultees as listed at 6 above are currently being consulted. 

14 All the elected members were notified of the amendments by email with a link to the authority’s 
consultation page.   

15 All parish councils and town councils were notified of the amendment consultation. 

 
Community Impact 

16 The policy may impact on the Community.  

Appendices 

17 a. Amendments to Licensing Policy  
  
 

 
Background Papers 

Background papers are available for inspection in the Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford 30 minutes before the start of the hearing. 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



 

 
For further information please contact 

Shane Hancock, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261752 
 
 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE  

DATE: 5 JULY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: UPDATE ON ACTIVITY OF COMMUNITY 
PROTECTION TEAM 

PORTFOLIO: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (HIGHWAYS, 
TRANSPORT & COMMUNITY SERVICES) 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

Countywide 

Purpose 

To provide an update on the main activities of the Community Protection Team for the period 
April to May 2011. 

Summary of Key Activities 

1. Fly-tipping 

The team investigated 123 fly-tips in this period. A number of these have resulted in 
suspects being identified and are subject to ongoing enquiries. The number of reported 
fly-tips represents a general downward trend which is encouraging. 

22 Duty of Care inspections were carried out during this period, designed to ensure that 
producers of waste have appropriate arrangements in place for its correct disposal. 

Three evidential files involving a total of five defendants have been submitted. It is 
anticipated that one defendant will be prosecuted in respect of a fly-tip at Wellington, 
Hereford, and four defendants will be cautioned. The outcome of the prosecution will be 
reported to the next meeting. 

Three Fixed Penalty Notices were issued for failing to produce waste transfer notes. 

2. Litter 

The team dealt with 69 litter related incidents.  

Two defendants appeared at court during this period. Both had been issued Fixed 
Penalty Notices for littering and had failed to pay them. On 8th April Danny PRICE was 
convicted in his absence and fined £100 with £50 costs. On 20th May Hannah GOULD 

AGENDA ITEM 8

33



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261986 

was convicted and given Conditional Discharge. 

8 Fixed Penalty Notices were issued for dropping and leaving litter. One person received 
written advice for littering from a vehicle, and one file recommending a prosecution for an 
aggravated littering offence over a number of years was submitted. The outcome of the 
prosecution will be reported to the next meeting. 

The ‘No Butts – It’s Litter’ campaign was run in partnership with Amey and Safer 
Herefordshire between 30th March and 6th May.  This was aimed at educating people as 
to the appropriate disposal of cigarette butts, one of the most difficult and costly forms of 
litter to clear.  Events were held in Hereford and each of the market towns with over 700 
people engaged with and given a ‘stubbie’ (portable ashtray). The event gained very 
positive media coverage and Safer Herefordshire is sharing our good practice with at 
least with at least one other authority who contacted them after hearing of the campaign.  

3. Fly-posting 

11 incidents of fly-posting were dealt with resulting in advice being given and the removal 
of the ‘offending’ poster(s) where appropriate. 

4. Abandoned vehicles 

A total of 20 reports were received about abandoned vehicles. 19 of these were resolved 
without the need for formal action. One vehicle was seized and subsequently returned to 
the owner after appropriate costs were paid. 

5. Dog Control  

91 stray dogs were seized during this period with almost three-quarters being returned to 
their owner upon payment of costs. 

2 Fixed Penalty Notices were issued in respect of dog fouling offences. 

A ‘responsible dog owner’ course run by the Dog Wardens concluded in Leominster on 
10th June, with courses staring in Ross on 15th June and in Hereford and 16th June. 
These courses, initiated last year and very popular, aim to impact in a positive way on 
the number of stray dogs and dog control in general.  

6. Intelligence-led patrols 

The team carried out 215 intelligence-led patrols around littering and dog-fouling issues 
specifically. 

 

34



 

 
For further information please contact 

Marc Willimont, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261986 
 
 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE  

DATE: 5 JULY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REPORT ON REGULATORY ACTIVITY OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & TRADING 
STANDARDS 

PORTFOLIO: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (ENVIRONMENTAL 
HEALTH & TRADING STANDARDS ) 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

Countywide 

Purpose 

To note the main regulatory activities of Environmental Health & Trading Standards service 
for the period April – May 2011 for the following service areas: 

i. Environmental Protection Team,  

ii. Licensing Team,  

iii. Air, Land & Water Team,  

iv. Gypsy Traveller Team 

LICENSING TEAM 

The Licensing Team encompasses key areas such as:- 

• Taxi Licensing 

• Licensing Act (pubs and clubs and events) 

• General Licensing (animal boarding, street collections etc) 

• Gambling Act Licensing 

1. During the period April - May 2011 the Officers’ Taxi Panel has met once on 12th April.  

2. During the period April - May 2011 the following matters were referred to committee by 
the Licensing Team: 

AGENDA ITEM 9

35



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261986 

2010/11 Reviews held by Sub Committees 

April 20th April – Big Chill Hearing 

26th April – Malhurst Northside Service Station, Hope under Dinmore 

26th April – Dukes head, Leominster – gaming machines 

26th April – Suspension of a taxi driver 

May 13th May – Prince of Wales, Ledbury 

13th May – The Bell Inn, Leominster 

13th May – The Man of Ross Public house, Ross-on-Wye 

25th and 31st May – Randuni Restaurant, Ledbury – expedited review 

.    

3. In addition to the above review work, the Licensing Team deals with many enquiries 
and complaints from the public. In 2010/11 there were 2997 service requests and by 
the end of May in 2011 there have so far been 397 service requests, comparing to 
378 for this same period last year, therefore work rates remain high. The workloads 
and trends are shown in the graph below. 

Service Requests for Licensing Team

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb M
ar

A
pr

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

S
ep

te
m
be

r
O
ct
ob

er
N
ov
em

be
r

D
ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

F
eb

ru
ar
y

M
ar
ch

2009 2010 2011 2012

N
u
m
b
er
s 
o
f 
R
eq
u
es
ts
 f
o
r 
S
er
vi
ce

Service Requests

 

4. In 2010/11 there were 2732 licensing transactions (granting of licences and 
variations etc). By the end of May 2011, we have had 437 transactions comparing to 
364 for this same period last year, therefore transaction totals seem to be increasing. 
The workloads and trends are shown in the graph below. 

36



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261986 

Licensing Transactions Total

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb M
ar

A
pr

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug
us
t

S
ep
te
m
be
r

O
ct
ob
er

N
ov
em

be
r

D
ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu
ar
y

F
eb
ru
ar
y

M
ar
ch

2009 2010 2011 2012

Transactions Total

 

Night Time Enforcement Work 

5. The Licensing Team are currently undertaking night time joint enforcement 
inspections with the police. The first operation is code named ‘Verify’ and relates to 
the procedures used by the city’s pubs and clubs to challenge underage entry and 
sales of alcohol. The second operation is called operation “Hansom” whereby the 
Council’s licensing officers and police are checking taxis and challenging taxi drivers 
who are not using the city’s taxi ranks legally. 

Festivals and Regulatory Work 

6. A number of festivals during the summer months will require extra regulatory effort in 
order to ensure compliance. The Big Chill is currently being planned with regular 
Safety Advisory Group meetings (SAGs). On 20th April 2011, the licensing team 
prepared and presented two reports for a committee hearing where the residents 
challenged the Big Chill licence in relation to its noise conditions. 

Underage Test purchases  

7. The Licensing Team worked closely with the police and the Trading Standards Team 
in the continuation of covert underage test purchase of alcohol in licensed premises.  

8. The results of this operation imply that there has been a marked improvement, as 
initially in 2010 the fail rate was as high as 40%, whereas the most recent levels are 
now as low as 5% or less.  

9. Although this may be in part due to the licensed trade better detecting covert 
operations, it is probable that the door staff at the pubs and clubs have markedly 
improved their challenge of the under-aged, particularly for those pubs that have had 
their licences reviewed as a consequence. This could be the reason why A & E 
admissions of the under-aged have significantly fallen since the operations started in 
December 2010. This is demonstrated in the graph below which uses A & E alcohol 
related admission data to monitor the number of people under 18 who have sought 
medical attention from the hospital, typically on Friday and Saturday nights. 

37



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261986 

Number of Underage A & E Admissions

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

2010 2011

N
o
 o
f 
A
 &
 E
 A
d
m
is
si
o
n
s

No of A&E Admissions for <18
yr olds

Linear (No of A&E Admissions
for <18 yr olds)

 
.    

38



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261986 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION TEAM 

The Environmental Protection Team encompasses key areas such as:- 

• Noise nuisance – investigation and service of abatement notices 

• Other nuisances – e.g. odour, dust, smoke etc 

• High Hedge complaints 

• Burial of deceased without means 

• Smoke offences – e.g. Clean Air Act and dark smoke offences 

• Drainage – clearance of drains and sewers and broken septic tanks 

• Public Health – clearance of land or housing with rats, mice or rubbish 

• Planning Consultations 

• Licensing Consultations 

 

10. In the calendar year of 2010/11 there were 1932 service requests in total. 

11. During the period April - May 2011 there have so far been 455 service requests 
compared to 338 for the same period last year, therefore workloads have increased.  

12. The graph below helps show the seasonality and long term trend compared to the 
previous year. 

Number of Env Protection Service Requests

0
50
100
150
200
250
300

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

F
eb M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug
us
t

S
ep
te
m
be
r

O
ct
ob
er

N
ov
em

be
r

D
ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu
ar
y

F
eb
ru
ar
y

M
ar
ch

2009 2010 2011 2012

Service Requests

 

13. 172 of the 455 service requests relate to noise which equates to about 38%. This 
compares to 51% last year, implying that noise is slightly less of a problem so far this 
year. The team ran a “Noise Action Week” initiative in May 2011, which might have 
affected this data. 

14. During the period April - May 2011 the team has responded to 59 planning 
consultations and 23 licensing consultations. 

39



For further information please contact 
Marc Willimont, Regulatory Services Manager on 01432 261986 

AIR, LAND & WATER TEAM (SPECIALIST POLLUTION) 

The Air, Land & Water Team encompasses key areas such as:- 

• Closed landfill site management – monitoring and project managing engineering 
works etc. 

• Contaminated land – responses on planning applications and investigations 

• Private and mains water supply monitoring and regulation 

• Industrial pollution control – issuing of environmental permits for large factories 

• Air Quality – monitoring and assessment of air quality across the county 

• Seagulls – managing the contract for egg and nest removal 

 

Although much of this team’s remit is not enforcement based, during May 2011 the following 
regulatory work was undertaken by this team: 

15. During May 2011 there were 17 planning Consultations undertaken for potential 
contamination.  

16 There were 249 landfill monitoring events undertaken, meaning 38.4% of the monitoring 
programme was achieved. (This reduction was due to work involved with the drilling contract 
at Stretton Sugwas). 

17. There were 95 PWS samples were taken and 4 notices were served. 

18. There were 27 PWS risk assessments were programmed and 17 were completed. 

19. The seagull control programme was started in April and will continue until the end of August 
2011. The contractors report on the number of eggs taken and nests removed and this data 
implies that the actions taken are still having a marked effect on the colonies in Hereford. 
This year, industry and business are contributing to the cost of running this service. BBC 
Hereford & Worcester have featured this service. 

 

GYPSY & TRAVELLER TEAM 

Although much of this team’s remit is the management of the six council owned gypsy & 
traveller sites across the county, during the period April May 2011 there were 8 illegal 
encampments moved on from council owned land by this team. 

40



 
1 

E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
A
L
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 A
N
D
 T
R
A
D
IN
G
 S
T
A
N
D
A
R
D
S
 

 

T
R
A
D
IN
G
 S
T
A
N
D
A
R
D
S
, E

N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
A
L
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 C
O
M
M
E
R
C
IA
L
 A
N
IM

A
L
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 &
 W

E
L
F
A
R
E
 a
n
d
 P
E
S
T
 

C
O
N
T
R
O
L
 T
E
A
M
S
  

H
IG
H
L
IG
H
T
S
 &
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 -
 1

st
 Q
U
A
R
T
E
R
 A
P
R
 –
 J
U
N
E
 2
01
1 

   

E
N
F
O
R
C
E
M
E
N
T
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

   
 T
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 N
am

e 
 

 D
ef
en

d
an

ts
 

T
ra
d
e 

 N
at
u
re
 o
f 

O
ff
en

ce
 

 A
ct
 

 N
o
 o
f 

C
h
ar
g
es
 

 P
le
a 

 R
es

u
lt
 

 C
o
st
s 
A
w
ar
d
ed

 
 R
em

ar
ks
 

Jo
hn

 H
en

ry
 K
in
g 

&
 N

at
ha

n 
K
in
g 

O
ut
 o
f C

ou
nt
y 

Iti
ne

ra
nt
 

tr
ad

er
s 
– 

pr
op

er
ty
 

re
pa

irs
 

‘c
ol
d 
ca

lli
ng

’ -
fa
ili
ng

 to
 g
iv
e 

ca
nc

el
la
tio

n 
rig

ht
s,
 

ag
gr
es

si
ve

 
pr
ac

tic
es

, 
fa
ls
e 

re
pr
es

en
ta
tio

n 
 

C
on

su
m
er
 

P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
fr
om

 
U
nf
ai
r 
T
ra
di
ng

 
R
eg

ul
at
io
ns

 
20

08
 (
C
P
R
’s
) 

3 
G
ui
lty
 

G
ui
lty
 

(£
50

0 
fin

e 
x 
2)
 

£1
00

0 
to
ta
l 

 H
er
ef
or
ds

hi
re
 

C
ro
w
n 
C
ou

rt
 

£1
00

0 
S
ta
tic

 p
ar
k 
ho

m
e 
in
 

B
ro
m
ya

rd
. V

ic
tim

s 
w
er
e 
an

 
85

 y
ea

r 
ol
d 
w
id
ow

 a
nd

 a
 la

te
 

60
’s
 s
in
gl
e 
oc

cu
pa

nt
 

N
ei
ll 
W
in
ne

y 
&
 

D
an

ie
l W

ya
tt 

T
/a
 T
P
 L
ei
su

re
. 

P
et
er
st
ow

 H
fd
s 

C
ar
av

an
 s
al
es

 
th
ro
ug

h 
E
-B

ay
 

F
ra
ud

 a
nd

 
M
is
de

sc
rib

ed
 

&
 

un
ro
ad

w
or
th
y 

ca
ra
va

ns
 

F
ra
ud

 A
ct
 2
00

6 
&
 C

P
R
’s
 

4 
G
ui
lty
 

A
w
ai
tin

g 
se

nt
en

ce
 

H
er
ef
or
ds

hi
re
 

C
ro
w
n 
C
ou

rt
 

 
C
ar
av

an
 in

su
ra
nc

e 
w
rit
e 
of
fs
,  

ba
dl
y 
re
pa

ire
d 
an

d 
re
so

ld
 

w
ith

 fa
ls
e 
de

sc
rip

tio
ns

 fo
r 

£0
00

’s
 o
ve

r 
tr
ue

 m
ar
ke

t 
va

lu
e.
 Im

pa
ct
 a
cr
os

s 
th
e 

co
un

tr
y 
as

 fa
r 
as

 S
co

tla
nd

. 
B
us

in
es

s 
tr
an

sa
ct
io
ns

 
ex

ce
ed

in
g 
10

0,
00

0’
s 
. 

P
ro
ce

ed
s’
 o
f c

rim
e 

in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
un

de
rw

ay
. 

 
        

41



 
2 

      IN
T
E
R
V
E
N
T
IO
N
S
 

   T
S
 

S
ta
tic

 P
ar
k 
H
om

e 
Le

a 
R
os

s-
on

-W
ye

 

W
ill
ia
m
 K
in
g 

Iti
ne

ra
nt
 tr
ad

er
 

fr
om

 o
ut
 o
f c

ou
nt
y 

– 
pr
op

er
ty
 r
ep

ai
rs
 

 

C
ol
d 
C
al
le
d 
a 
st
at
ic
 p
ar
k 
ho

m
e 
at
 L
ea

 n
ea

r 
R
os

s 
on

 W
ye

. E
ng

ag
ed

 in
 a
gg

re
ss

iv
e 

pr
ac

tic
es

 b
y 
un

de
rt
ak

in
g 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar
y 
w
or
k 
im

m
ed

ia
te
ly
, t
yp

ic
al
ly
 s
in
gl
e 
el
de

rly
 

oc
cu

pa
nt
s.
 C

ha
rg
in
g 
ex

to
rt
io
na

te
 a
m
ou

nt
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
w
or
k.
 R
ap

id
 in

te
rv
en

tio
n 
by

 tr
ad

in
g 

st
an

da
rd
s 
te
am

 w
hi
ch

 r
es

ul
te
d 
in
 s
av

in
g 
£1

4,
00

0 
fo
r 
vu

ln
er
ab

le
 c
on

su
m
er
s.
 

 

Ju
ne

  

82
 y
ea

r 
ol
d 
si
ng

le
 

fe
m
al
e 
H
er
ef
or
d 

C
ol
d 
ca

lle
d 
at
 

ho
m
e 
by

 It
in
er
an

t 
tr
ad

er
 

In
te
rv
en

tio
n 
by

 tr
ad

in
g 
st
an

da
rd
s 
an

d 
po

lic
e 
re
su

lte
d 
in
 tr
ad

er
 b
ei
ng

 a
rr
es

te
d 
an

d 
in
te
rv
ie
w
ed

 –
 c
on

su
m
er
 s
av

ed
 £
30

0.
 S
ub

je
ct
 to

 fu
rt
he

r 
in
ve

st
ig
at
io
n 
an

d 
pr
ob

ab
le
 

pr
os

ec
ut
io
n 
re
po

rt
.  

Ju
ne

  

E
H
 C
o
m
m
er
ci
al
 

B
ot
tle

d 
w
at
er
 

pr
od

uc
er
 

U
ns

at
is
fa
ct
or
y 
 

sa
m
pl
e 
re
su

lts
 -
  

ex
ce

ss
iv
e 
co

lif
or
m
s 

fo
un

d 

V
ol
un

ta
ry
 r
ec

al
l o

f s
to
ck
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
sa

m
pl
in
g 
an

d 
un

sa
tis
fa
ct
or
y 
ba

ct
er
ia
l a

na
ly
si
s 

re
su

lts
. E

H
 te

am
 h
av

e 
be

en
 w
or
ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 
pr
od

uc
er
 to

 e
lim

in
at
e 
ca

us
e 
of
 

co
nt
am

in
at
io
n 
an

d 
to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

nt
ro
l a

nd
 p
ro
du

ct
io
n 
m
et
ho

ds
. O

n 
go

in
g 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
sa

m
pl
in
g 
to
 e
ns

ur
e 
pr
od

uc
t i
s 
sa

fe
 a
nd

 to
 p
re
ve

nt
 li
ke

lih
oo

d 
of
 fu

tu
re
 

re
oc

cu
rr
en

ce
.  

Ju
ne

  

T
w
o 
se

pa
ra
te
 

fo
od

 p
ro
du

ce
rs
 –
 

da
iry

 p
ro
du

ct
s 

U
ns

at
is
fa
ct
or
y 

le
ve

ls
 o
f L

is
te
ria

 
fo
un

d 
in
 d
ai
ry
 

pr
od

uc
ts
 

ch
ee

se
/ic

e 
cr
ea

m
 

E
H
 te

am
 h
av

e 
be

en
 w
or
ki
ng

 c
lo
se

ly
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr
od

uc
er
s 
(lo

ca
l b

us
in
es

se
s)
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

ca
us

e 
an

d 
to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pr
od

uc
tio

n 
m
et
ho

ds
 to

 p
re
ve

nt
 r
eo

cc
ur
re
nc

e.
  

A
pr
/M

ay
  

A
ll 
B
ut
ch

er
s 

w
ith

in
 c
ou

nt
y 

M
ai
l S

ho
t 

N
ot
ifi
ca

tio
n 
le
tte

r 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 d
oc

um
en

t r
eg

ar
di
ng

 im
pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 H
A
C
C
P
 

pr
oc

ed
ur
es

 fo
llo
w
in
g 
re
co

m
m
en

da
tio

ns
 o
f t
he

 e
nq

ui
ry
 r
ep

or
t p

ub
lis
he

d 
in
to
 E
-C

ol
i 

ou
tb
re
ak

 in
 W

al
es

. 

M
ay

  

2 
se

pa
ra
te
 F
oo

d 
H
an

dl
er
s 
– 
H
ig
h 

R
is
k 
oc

cu
pa

tio
ns

 

E
-C

ol
i n

ot
ifi
ca

tio
ns

 
F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
no

tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 p
os

iti
ve

 E
-c
ol
i r
es

ul
ts
,  
tw
o 
fo
od

 h
an

dl
er
s 
w
er
e 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 fr
om

 
th
ei
r 
w
or
kp

la
ce

 fr
om

 b
et
w
ee

n 
on

e 
– 
tw
o 
w
ee

ks
, i
n 
or
de

r 
to
 p
re
ve

nt
 c
ro
ss

 
co

nt
am

in
at
io
n 
an

d 
po

te
nt
ia
l s
pr
ea

d.
 B
ot
h 
in
ci
de

nt
s 
ha

ve
 b
ee

n 
su

cc
es

sf
ul
ly
 c
on

ta
in
ed

. 

A
pr
/M

ay
/J
un

e 

 
 

 
 

  

42



 
3 

   A
C
T
IV
IT
IE
S
 

 T
ea

m
 

T
ot
al
 S
er
vi
ce

 R
eq

ue
st
s 
A
pr
- 
M
ay

 
In
 ta

rg
et
 

O
ut
 o
f t
ar
ge

t  
N
ot
es

 
P
es

t 
C
on

tr
ol
 

31
5 

[R
at
s 
84

] 
[W

as
ps

 1
20

] 
 

30
1 

14
 

S
ta
rt
in
g 
to
 s
ee

 a
n 
in
cr
ea

se
 in

 
w
as

p 
no

tif
ic
at
io
ns

 

A
ni
m
al
 

H
ea

lth
 &
 

W
el
fa
re
 

10
6 

 
93

 
13

 
 

A
H
 &
 W

 
R
ec

on
ci
lia
tio

ns
 -
 M

ov
em

en
t 

R
ec

or
ds

 &
  V

is
its
 

In
 ta

rg
et
 

O
ut
 o
f t
ar
ge

t 
 

 
61

0 
60

9 
1 

 
  E
nd

 
M
ik
e 
P
ig
re
m
 

R
eg

ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
M
an

ag
er
 

24
/0
6/
20

11
 

43



44



 

 
For further information please contact 

Denise Bradley Lloyd, Private Sector Housing Manager on 01432 260276 
 
 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE  

DATE: 5 JULY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REPORT ON REGULATORY ACTIVITY OF 
PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING 

PORTFOLIO: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (HOMES AND 
COMMUNITIES) 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

Countywide 

Purpose 

To note the main regulatory activities of Private Sector Housing for the year 2010/11. 

SERVICE REQUESTS 

 

During 2010 there were 264 service requests made to Private Sector Housing Enforcement 
(PSE). Seasonal variation in July and August saw the majority of enquiries, with the 
remaining months averaging approximately 35 referrals. 

The majority of enquiries were for information and advice, followed by housing hazards and 

AGENDA ITEM 10

45



For further information please contact 
Denise Bradley Lloyd, Private Sector Housing Manager on 01432 261986 

Trader Register requests. 

 

Response categories show that most enquires were handled as requests for advice within 
28 days. The raw data from Civica APP does not however accurately reflect the number of 
other categories such triage letters etc. as in many instances these were recorded as 
requests for advice. This issue was picked up during Civica APP refresher training for all 
Private Sector Housing staff at the end of 2010. 

 

 

46



For further information please contact 
Denise Bradley Lloyd, Private Sector Housing Manager on 01432 261986 

INSPECTIONS 

There were 1.5 officers within the PSE in 2010. Inspection numbers were low principaly due 
to under recording but also due to divertion of resources to complete other projects such as 
prosecutions or configeration of Civica APP. 

 

 

NOTICES 

A total of 28 notices were served in 2010, including improvement notices, and prohibition 
orders. 

 

 

47



For further information please contact 
Denise Bradley Lloyd, Private Sector Housing Manager on 01432 261986 

PROSECUTIONS 

5 Aylestone Hill, Hereford 

On Friday 20 March 2009, Mr Marc Mohan was fined £8,000 for not licensing his House in 
Multiple Occupation (HMO) at 5 Aylestone Hill, Hereford; this included £3,000 for failing to 
comply with an emergency prohibition order under the Housing Act 2004, and £2,000 for 
failing to do a fire risk assessment and a further £4,000 for four other fire safety offences 
under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. 

The court heard how housing and fire officers, after an anonymous complaint from a 
member of the public, found no fire safety measures installed when they inspected the four-
storey house. Mr Mohan knowingly failed to licence his property with the council, and then 
permitted tenants (most of them students from the local colleges) to sleep there in defiance 
of an emergency prohibition order relating to fire safety issues. 

District Judge Gwyn Jones in his summing up referred to the “flagrant disregard” of this 
landlord for the health and safety of his tenants, many of them vulnerable young students. 
The judge said he did not see “why the public purse should have to pay the costs of this 
investigation” and awarded full costs of £13,463 to both the housing and fire authorities.  

34 Church Road, Hereford 

On 28 March 2011, Mr Nicholas Layton was fined £4,500 after admitting failing to licence 34 
Church Road, Hereford as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) under the  
Housing Act 2004. Mr Layton was also ordered to pay £2,000 costs and a £15 victim 
surcharge. 

An inspection carried out under warrant, found 14 occupants from Eastern Europe (including 
families with children living in single rooms), in the four-storey property, which only had one 
working kitchen. If the property had been licensed as a HMO, it could legally only have had 
four residents. A HMO licence application had been sent to Mr Layton in July 2009 but, at 
the time of the inspection in November 2009, he had still not applied for the licence. 

Pending Cases 

There are currently two separate PSE cases awaiting trial. The first relates to failure to 
comply with an overcrowding notice and the second is in respect of failure to comply with an 
Emergency Prohibition Order. 

 

HOME CERT ACCREDITATION 

Most landlords are committed to providing good quality, properly managed accommodation 
and most tenants comply with their tenancy agreements and respect the homes they live in. 
The Home Cert Landlord and Tenant Accreditation Scheme has been developed with the 
Herefordshire Landlord Focus Group to recognise this contribution. 

The aim of the Scheme is to improve both the physical and management standards of the 
private rented sector in Herefordshire and has been recently adopted by Herefordshire 
College of Art as their benchmark of choice for student accommodation. There are currently 
more than 30 accredited landlords and properties in Herefordshire. 

48



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Pete Martens (01432) 260248 
 

MEETING: REGULATORY COMMITTEE  

DATE: 5 JULY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: PROGRESS OF REGULATORY MATTERS 

PORTFOLIO: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR LAW, GOVERNANCE & 
RESILIANCE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To note the main activities of those involved in regulatory matters since the introduction of 
changes to the Constitution on 1st February, 2011. 

CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION  

1. Changes to the Constitution approved by Council on 19th October 2010 came into 
effect on 1st February, 2011.   

2. The changes also included the introduction of an officer panel (Taxi & County 
Transport Badge Officers Panel) which is comprised of officers from licensing, the legal 
team and safeguarding.  The Panel considers applications for, or revocations of, 
hackney carriage/private hire drivers’ licences; the suspension of driver licences; and 
applications for county transport badges.   

3. As part of the new approach, the Committee has also decided that the Regulatory 
Sub-Committee, in addition to its existing duties under the Licensing Act 2003 and 
Gambling Act, 2005, will deal with the following matters: 

• hear appeals arising from the Officer Panel refusing to grant applications for 
taxi driver licences; suspending driver licenses or recommending that driver 
licenses be revoked; and   

• certain footpath and bridleway diversion applications.  

AGENDA ITEM 11

49



ACTIVITIES OF THE OFFICER PANEL   

4. The Officers Panel has met on two occasions and dealt with the following matters: 

• applications for a County Transport Badge refused – 1 

• applications for a County Transport Badge granted – 2; and  

• applications for hackney carriage/private hire drivers granted – 2 (1 subject to 
suitable references. 

REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE   

4. The Sub-Committee has met on eight occasions since the new arrangements came 
into effect and has dealt with the matters referred to it as follows: 

(a) 20th April 2011 

• preliminary points to consider regarding 'Big Chill Festival’, Eastnor Castle, Deer Park, 
Ledbury 

• application for a new premises licence 'Big Chill Festival’, Eastnor Castle, Deer Park, 
Ledbury 

(b) 26th April 2011 

• Highways Act 1980, Section 119 – footpath diversion order ZC123 (part), Leominster 

• Highways Act 1980, Section 119 – footpath diversion order GR26 (Part), Goodrich  

• application for variation of a premises licence Malthurst Northside Service Station, 
Hereford Road, Hope Under Dinmore 

• application for the grant of a licensed premises gaming machine permit for 4 
machines, in respect of The Duke's Head, Corn Square, Leominster 

• suspension notice served on a hackney carriage/private hire driver   

(c) 13th May 2011 

• application for a review of the premises licence The Prince Of Wales, Church Lane, 
Ledbury 

• application for a review of the premises licence The Bell Inn, 39 Etnam Street, 
Leominster 

• application for a review of the premises licence The Man Of Ross, Wye Street, Ross-
On-Wye 

(d) 25th May 2011 

• application for an expedited review Raduni Indian Cuisine, 66 The Homend, Ledbury 

50



(e) 31st May 2011 

• representations against interim steps - expedited review Raduni Indian Cuisine, 66 
The Homend, Ledbury 

(f) 17th June 2011 

• full review Raduni Indian Cuisine, 66 The Homend, Ledbury 

• application for variation of premises licence Mcdonalds Restaurant, Belmont Road, 
Hereford 

(g) 23rd June 2011 

• application for a premises licence Beer On The Wye (2011), Hereford Rowing Club, 
Greyfriars Avenue, Hereford 

(h) 28th June 2011 

• Highways Act 1980, Section 119 – footpath diversion orders MB16 (part) and MB18 
(part) Much Birch   

• Highways Act 1980, Section 119 – footpath diversion order  ET2 (part), Elton   

• Highways Act 1980, Section 119 – footpath diversion order LG49 (part)  Llangarron   

• application to re-instate an expired hackney carriage vehicle licence 

• application for variation of premises licence Shooter's Bar Grafton House, Leominster 

• application for a motor salvage operators licence 

BACKGROUND PAPERS Agenda papers from Council and the Regulatory Sub-Committee. 

 

51



52


	Agenda
	
	6 MINUTES
	7 MINOR AMENDMENTS TO THE LICENSING POLICY - LICENSING ACT 2003
	Conditions
	Licensing Page 22 - 23 Amendment
	Licensing  Page 30  - Amendment
	8 update on activity of community protection team
	9 Regulatory activities of Environmental Health & Trading Standards since 1st April,  2011
	Main Activities of Environmental Health & Trading Standards from 1st April, 3011
	10 REGULATORY ACTIVITY OF Private sector housing
	11 PROGRESS OF REGULATORY MATTERS

